
Balancing Crnnmunit) and Commerce 

44 N SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON CA 95202 209-468-3198

MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY, JUNE 13, 2024, 9:00 A. M. 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS 

44 NORTH SAN JOAQUIN STREET, 5rH FLOOR 
STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 

Call to Order 
Announce Date and Time of Meeting for the Record 
Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance 

CONSENT ITEMS 

1. SUMMARY OF MINUTES OF APRIL 11, 2024
(Possible Discussion and Possible Action by All Members)
Approve Summary Minutes of the Regular Meeting.

2. OUT-OF-AGENCY SERVICE REQUEST
(Possible Discussion and Possible Action by Regular Voting Members)

Requests from the City of Stockton to provide out-of-agency sewer service outside the City
boundary under Government Code §56133 to 305 S. Del Norte Avenue, 1803 N. Stanford Avenue
and 3325 San Mateo Avenue in Stockton.

3. POLICY ADMENDMENTS FOR ANNEXATION AND ALTERNATE MEMBERS
(Possible Discussion and Possible Action by All Members)
Commission consideration of policy amendments.

PUBLLIC HEARING 

4. HAT RANCH REORGANIZATION TO THE CITY OF MANTECA

(Possible Discussion and Possible Action by Regular Voting Members)
Request to annex approximately 184.6 acres to the City of Manteca with concurrent detachment

from both the Lathrop - Manteca Fire Protection District and the Ripon Consolidated Fire District.

5. FINAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

(Possible Discussion and Possible Action by All Members)
Commission consideration of the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025,

Work Program and Schedule of Fees.

I I I' , " , 
001



Agenda I tern 1 

Balancing ( ommunit) and ( ommen.:e 

44 N SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON CA 95202 209-468-3198

SUMMARY MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING April 11

1 
2024 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS 
44 NORTH SAN JOAQUIN STREET, 5TH FLOOR 

STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 

Chairman Johnson called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 

ALTERNATE MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

AL TERNA TE MEMBERS 
ABSENT: 

OTHERS PRESENT: 

CONSENT ITEMS 

Commissioners Breitenbucher, Diallo Patti, Johnson, 
Villapudua and Chairman Johnson 

None 

Commissioner Barton, Dhatt and Ding 

None 

J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer; Legal Counsel Nubia
Goldstein; Mitzi Stites, Commission Clerk/Analyst; and
Claudia lboa, Administrative Assistant

The Chairman introduced Agenda Item No. 1, Summary of Minutes. 

The Chairman introduced Agenda Item No. 2, Out-of-agency services request to the City of 
Stockton is to provide out-agency sewer service outside the City boundary under Government 
Code §56133 to 2019 E. Fifth Street, 3232 N. F Street, 1823 Adelbert Avenue, 2019 E. Fifth 
Street and 1622 Ghilcrist Avenue in Stockton. 

Chairman Johnson opened the floor to Commissioner Comments. 

No Comments were made. 

Chairman Johnson opened the floor to Public Comments. 

No Comments were made. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Breitenbucher and seconded by Commissioner Villapudua 
to approve the Consent Items. 

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE https://www.sjlafco.org 

002



Chairman Johnson asked for a Roll Call Vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Breitenbucher, Diallo, Dhatt, Ding, Patti, Villapudua and Chairman 
Johnson 
Noes: None 

DISCUSSIONS ITEMS 

3. DRAFT POLICY MANUAL ADMENDMENTS FOR ANNEXATION AND OUT-OF
AGNECY
(Discussion and possible action by All Members)

Executive Officer J.D. Hightower presented a PowerPoint Presentation on the potential Policy 
Manual amendments. 1) Annexation and reorganization boundaries to include all types of 
public rights-of-way needed to support the proposed development. 
2) LAFCo time limits to be coordinated with other project approvals; and,

3) Authorize the Executive Officer to approve Out-of-Agencies.

Chairman Johnson opened comments to commissioners. 

The Commission discussed the policies but there were no matters do vote on. 

4. PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
(Possible Discussion and Possible Action by All Members)
Commission consideration of the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025,
Work Program and Schedule of Fees.

J.D. Hightower, Executive Director, presented a PowerPoint Presentation on the 2024-2025 FY
Budget and Work Program.

The Commissioner discussed the 2024-2025 FY Budget. The Commission requested that staff 
do a Commission Stipend survey. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMMENTS 

5. Comments from the Executive Officer

Mr. J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, informed the Commission regarding the Hat Annexation 
reorganization to the City of Manteca in June meeting and no meeting in May due to One
Voice. 

6. Comments, Reports, or Questions from the LAFCO Commissioners

ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Johnson adjourned the meeting at 9:43 a.m. 

003



Agenda Item 2 

san Joaquin

■!�rrQ Balancing Comrnunit) and Commerce 

TheGat-,,Comy 

44 N SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON. CA 95202 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

June 13, 2024 

TO: LAFCo Commissioners 

FROM: Jeffery Hightower, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: CITY OF STOCKTON OUT-OF-AGENCY SERVICE REQUEST 

Recommendation 

209-468-3198 

It is recommended that the Commission approve the requests from the City of Stockton to provide Out-of
Agency sewer service under the Government Code §56133 to property located at 3325 N. San Mateo Ave, 
1803 Stanford Avenue and 305 S. Del Norte Avenue in Stockton. 

Background 
Government Code Section §56133 states that the Commission may authorize a city or special district to 
provide new or extended services outside its jurisdictional boundaries but within its sphere of influence in 
anticipation of a later change of organization and that prior to providing new or extended service, the city 
or district must first receive approval from LAFCo. The Commission adopted a policy that conditions their 
approval for out-of-agency service requiring the recordation of an agreement with the landowner 
consenting to annexation of their property when annexation becomes feasible. 

The City of Stockton submitted a request for approval to extend sanitary sewer services to single-family 
residences outside the city limits but within the city's sphere of influence. And to extend sanitary water 
service to the commercial property outside the city limits. A vicinity map is attached showing the location 
of the out-of-agency requests connections city to sewer lines are available to the properties and the 
property owner's have paid the appropriate connection fees to the city. The request for out-of-agency 
service are in compliance with the Government Code §56133 and Commission policies. Please note that 
the blue line shows the sewer line and the circle reflects the connection locations. Staff recommends 
approval of the attached Resolution 23-1526 approving out-of-agency services. 

Attachment: 

PHONE 209-468-3198 

Resolution No. 24-1536 
Vicinity Map 

E-MAIL jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE https:/lwww.sjlafco.org 
004



005



006



007



008



009



Agenda Item 3 

Balancing Communit) and Commerce 

44 N SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202 209-468-3198

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

PROJECT: 

PURPOSE: 

June 13, 2024 

LAFCo Commissioners 

J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer

Policy Manual amendments regarding Annexations and 

Out-of-Agencies. 

Update the following policies that will allow LAFCo to 

streamline process and to be more efficient: 

1) Annexation and reorganization boundaries to include all types of public

rights-of-way needed to support the proposed development;

2) LAFCo time limits to be coordinated with other project approvals;•and,

3) Authorize the Executive Officer to approve Out-of-Agencies.

BACKGROUND: Last month staff brought before the Commission (3) 

Policy Manual amendments for public information and discussion amongst 

all Commissioners to gather insights and comments for these policies. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the following Policy Manual amendments. 

The three (3) policies proposed for amendment are intended to clarify 

Commission expectations. Two (2) of the policies are within the Change of 

Organization Policies and Procedures (Including Annexations and 

Reorganizations section); and the other is within the Rules of the San 

Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission section. 

The amendments to the Change of Organization involve policies for City 

Annexation. The first proposed policy amendment would clarify the intent of 

an existing policy that an annexation area must include all needed municipal 

rights-of-way needed to serve the development. The second amendment 

allows the Commission to approve time extensions that are consistent with 

the time limits of associated and approved Development Agreements and 

Tentative Subdivision Maps that the cities have approved as part of the same 

project. 

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE https://www.sjlafco.org 
010



011



012



Agenda Item 4 

san Joaquin

LAFCO Balancing Communit) and Commerce 

44 N SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202 209-468-3198

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

DATE: June 13, 2024 
TO: LAFCo Commissioners 
FROM: J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer

SUBJECT: Hat Ranch Reorganization to the City of Manteca 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Commission concur with the Findings, 
Statement of Over Riding Findings for the Hat Ranch Environmental Impact Report 
and conditionally approve the requested reorganization to the City of Manteca. 

Project Location: The reorganization includes annexation of three parcels totaling 
184.7 acres, 2706 S. Manteca Road (APN 226-120-10), 27712 S. Manteca Road 
(APN 226-120-11), and 9701 E. Sedan Avenue (APN 226-140-04). The 
reorganization area is immediately south and east of existing City of Manteca 
boundaries. The area is bounded by the future extension of the Raymus Parkway to 
the South and the future extension of Atherton Road to the east. Hat Ranch currently 
consists of a 20,000 sqaure foot "mansion" and vineyards. 

2706 and 2712 S. Manteca Road are forty acres apiece and are south and east of the 
Evans/Pilsbury Estates Reorganization that was approved by the Commission in 
2010. 9701 E. Sedan is immediately south of the South of Woodward Avenue 
(SOWA) reorganization that was approved by the Commission in 2015. Both the 
Evans Estates and SOWA Reorganizations are built-out. 

Both Evans Estates and SOWA have provided stubbed streets to the reorganization 
boundaries with Polk Street, Buena Vista Drive, Inyo Avenue, Jigsaw Avenue, Pilsbury 
Road, and Veramonte Avenue providing planned circulation and integration of the 
planned Hat Ranch area. 

Project Actions: The reorganization is comprised of two actions, annexation to the 
City of Manteca and detachment from two (2) rural fire districts and County Road 
District 3. The rural fire districts currently providing service within the reorganization 
area are the Lathrop-Manteca Fire Protection District (LMFD) and the Ripon 
Consolidated Fire Protection District (RCFD), respectively. Two of the parcels, 2706 
and 2712 S. Manteca Road, totaling 80 acres are proposed to be detached from the 

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE https://www.sjlafco.org 

013



LMFD to the City. The third parcel 9701 E. Sedan Avenue, 104.09 acres, is proposed 
to be detached from the RCFD. Pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code Section 99, 
the City has reached a detachment agreement with both fire districts (please see 
Attachments 1 and 2). The detachment from County Road District 3 was agreed upon 
with the master tax sharing agreement reached between the City and County (please 
see Attachment 3). 

The Hat Ranch area is considered uninhabited pursuant to CKH Sections Sections 
56046 and 56079.5 with 2 active voters residing at 9701 E. Sedan Avenue. The area 
is also entirely within the Ripon Unified School District and South San Joaquin 
Irrigation District. The reorganization does not include detachment from either of these 
districts. 

Project Description: The reorganization is needed for a proposed master planned 
residential community that includes a RUSO school site, 738 single-family residences 
and half-plex units, two neighborhood parks, and associated circulation improvements 
located on approximately 184.7 acres of land in unincorporated San Joaquin County 
that is within the City of Manteca's Sphere of Influence (SOI). The City's Municipal 
Service Review (MSR) for the SOI was approved by the Commission on July 14, 
2022. 

Consistent with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act, 
the City has pre-zoned the area from AG-40 to the City's Planned Development Low 
Density Residential (PD-R-1 ), Public/Quasi-Public (PQP), and Planned Development
Park (PD-P) zoning districts. 

Hat Ranch Vicinity Map 

014



RCFO 

LATHROP.......-rfCA 

Hat Ranch Fire District Detachment Map 

LATHROP 

.J -

LOU6EAVE LOUS<AVfi 

., --, 
I 
I 

YOSEMITE AVE 
C �ST ,--: 

:;; 
I 

C Z ;1 I 

� � i : 
� @) " < �-, 

City Sphere of Influence 

1-=oo
I 

_, 
I 

� 

__ J 

015



Background: 
On September 19, 2023, the City of Manteca adopted Resolution R2023-131 
authorizing the submittal of an application for the reorganization. This action was in 
turn initiated by an application from Richland Planned Communities, Inc., for 
development of 152.4 acres of Low-Density Residential Land to accommodate 
approximately 634 single-family homes and 104 duplex units, a 16.1-acre 
elementary/middle school site, and two neighborhood parks totaling 16.2 acres 
(please see development plan below). 

The City adopted an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the project that included 
statement of over-riding findings for significant and unavoidable impacts associated 
with the project. 

LOT TYPE LOT TYPE 

(MIN) (MIN) 

10·,100· Half.Pie• 

60-XI00' I- Half Plcx Court 

55'X100' - School 

�0-.100 ,_ Pan: 

- 45'x100' 

Hat Ranch Development Plan 

016



REORGANIZATION CKH SECTION 56668 FACTORS 

The reorganization is consistent with all of the factors that must be considered, "A" 
through "Q", of Section 56668. There are four (4) factors that are most applicable to 
this reorganization, "A", "D", "G" and "K". The analysis of these factors are below. 

A. Population and population density; land area and land use; assessed
valuation; topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to
other populated areas; and the likelihood of significant growth in the area,
and in adjacent incorporated and unincorporated areas, during the next 10
years.

The reorganization and associated with the 738 proposed dwelling units multiplied 
by the US Census 2022 American Community Survey Manteca Average 
Household Size of 3.71 results in an expected population of 2,738. A reasonable 
range of population within Hat Ranch is between 2,214 (EIR@ 3.0 household size 
to 2,738 (Census) with the mid-point of the range being 2,502 (State Average). 
That household size is significantly less than the California average household size 
of 3.39. The range in the forecasted population provides planning flexibility and 
ability for the City to tailor fit facilities and programs to fit demand and need. 

Hat Ranch expected to add 2,738 new residents to the City of Manteca at an 
overall density of 18 residents per acre. With 634 detached single-family dwelling 
units and 104 half-plex units on approximately 152.4 acres, results in an overall 
density of 4.9 dwelling units per acre (du/ac). Thus, the proposed project land use 
density would be consistent with the Manteca General Plan land use designation 
of Low Density Residential (4-8 DU/AC) .. This development pattern is consistent 
with the density and land use pattern of the adjacent established neighborhoods. 

The general area east of Atherton Road to Austin Road/SR 99 is likely to 
experience significant growth in the next 10 years. Manteca's current growth rate is 
3.7% annually. Also encouraging this growth are the improvements to the Austin 
Road crossing over State Route 99 as part of the SR 120/SR 99 interchange 
widening. 

D. The conformity of both the proposal and its anticipated effects with both the
adopted commission policies on providing planned, orderly, efficient
patterns of urban development, and the policies and priorities in Section
56377.

The reorganization consistency with Manteca's General Plan is a planned and 
orderly pattern of urban development. The stated policy of Section 56377 is that, 
"Development or use of land for other than open-space uses shall be guided away 
from existing prime agricultural lands in open-space use toward areas containing 
nonprime agricultural lands " The soils within Hat Ranch are not prime and the site 

017



is mapped as Farmlands of Statewide Importance. The reorganization area is 
currently prime agricultural land as defined by Section 56064 because of the 
economic yield of the vineyards around the Hat Mansion. 

Approximately 140 acres of the soil classifications are mapped as "Farmland of 
Statewide Importance" by the State Department of Conservation, These lands are 
described as, "Irrigated land similar to Prime Farmland that has a good 
combination of physical and chemical characteristics for the production of 
agricultural crops. This land has minor shortcomings, such as greater slopes or 
less ability to store soil moisture than Prime Farmland." The 140 acres of 
Statewide Importance are under production developed with vineyards. The "Hat 
Mansion", a 20,000 square foot house, and the 13.1 acres around the mansion are 
mapped as "Semi-Agricultural and Rural Commercial Land." 

Department of Conservation Hat Ranch Farmland Mapping 
Semi-Agricultural and Rural Commercial Land 

There are no soils that the State Department of Conservation has mapped "Prime 
Farmland" within the Hat Ranch boundaries though CKH defines Prime Agricultural 
Lands differently as defined below: 

018



019



020



9 

� 
-

- - --

2024 Updated Habitat Fees* 

Habitat Type Fee Per Acre 

Multi-Purpose Open Space $8,918 

Natural $17,833 
Agriculture / r:� ~-1f: $17,833 
Vernal Pool - uplands $69,408 
Vernal Pool - wetted $177,724 
• Effective January I. 2024 - December 31, 2024

2024 Endowment Fees with In-lieu Land** 
Enhancement 

Land TOTAL PER 

Type of Preserve 
Cost/acre 

Manaxement ACRE 
Cost/acre ENDOWMENT 

Agricultural Habitat Lands $6,038.00 $792.15 $6,830.15 

Natural Lands $6,038.00 $792.15 $6,830.15 

Vernal Pool llahitat 

Vernal Pool Grasslands $14,906.00 $1,956.53 $16,862.53 

Vernal Pool Weued $ I 23,058.00 Sl,918.14 $124,976.14 
•• Effective January I. 2024 - December 31. 2024 in lieu of fees to be used as the endowment for the 
dedicated land preserves (Category 8 t C) based on impacted acres. 

2024 SJCOG, Inc. Habitat Conservation Plan Fee Schedule 

G. A regional transportation plan adopted pursuant to Section 65080

The project exceeds the Vehicle Miles Travelled forecast in the 2022 San Joaquin 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS). 
The RTP must be a financially viable plan, which also conforms to clean air goals. 
Under SB 375, the RTP must include a SCS for achieving regional emission reduction 
targets. 

To measure regional emission reduction, the State implemented SB 743 that requires 
cities and counties to establish benchmarks for Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) for their 
households. Manteca's established baseline VMT per single family household is 
103.8. Therefore, single family residential projects that exceed 88.2 VMT per 
household (15 percent below base year levels) would be considered to have 
significant impact. Households within the project are expected to have a VMT of 
114.6, a 10% increase, not decrease, from the current baseline. 

I 

021



022



(k} The ability of the ... receiving entity to provide the services that are the 
subject of the application to the area, including the sufficiency of revenues for 
those services following the proposed boundary change. 

Fire Service 
The proposal to detach the Hat Ranch reorganization site from both the Lathrop 
Manteca Fire Protection District is warranted because the City's Fire Station 5 is the 
closest station to the reorganized area. The City's Station 5 located on the northwest 
corner of Woodward Avenue and Atherton Road is 0.75 miles from Hat Ranch. With 
the completion of Atherton Road to the Raymus Parkway by the project, the a 
response time from the station will be approximately one (1) minute. This is compared 
to the response time from the closest Lathrop Manteca Fire Protection District Station 
2 located on Union Road, just north of Veritas Road with a response time of 

023



12 � 

Ida approximately 3 minutes. The closest Ripon Consolidated Fire Protection District 
station has a response time of 10 minutes to Hat Ranch reorganization area. 

All structures constructed as part of the proposed project would be designed in 
compliance with Section 16.23.030(8) of the City's Municipal Code and all applicable 
provisions of the California Fire Code. As part of compliance with Section 
16.23.030(8), the proposed project would be required to install a water system for the 
subdivision with such equipment, pipelines, and facilities as may be necessary to 
ensure the neighborhood has an adequate supply of water for domestic and fire 
protection purposes. Furthermore, as set forth in Section 16.23.030(8)(7) of the 
Municipal Code, construction plans for such water supply and distribution system are 
required to be supplied by the project applicant to the City's Public Works Department 
and MFD for approval to ensure the water supply and distribution system is consistent 
with City standards. Compliance with the aforementioned regulations would ensure 
that the demand for fire protection is reduced to the maximum extent feasible. 

Development within the Hat Ranch boundaries will be subject to the payment of the 
City's Fire Facility Fee as part of obtaining a building permit ($0.29 per square foot for 
single-family residential development) and the Water Facilities Development Fee, 
which is determined by meter size. Complementing the city-wide fire protection fee, 
the developer has agreed to pay $1.5 million for an additional Fire Engine to intended 
to serve the area. 

Wastewater 

The City's sewer service includes 242 miles of sewer mains and 19 pump stations. 
This conveyance system terminates at the City of Manteca Wastewater Quality 
Control Facility (WQFC). The WQCF has a current capacity of 9.87 million gallons per 
day (mgd) and is planning to increase the capacity to 27 mgd by buildout. The City 
estimates that the project will generate 195 gallons per day per equivalent dwelling 
unit (edu) for a total of 144,105 gallons per day of wastewater or 1.46% of the total 
WQCF capacity. 

The quantity of flows going to the plant are within the capacity of the plant. It is the 
characteristics, specifically the concentration of biological loads of the flow and the 
plant's design to treat such. Improvements to water conservation techniques has 
increased the concentration of flow being sent to the plant. The biological loading of 
the wastewater constituents has challenged the City to meet their permit requirements 
for nitrite and nitrite nitrogen discharge standards. Improvements to water 
conservation techniques has increased the concentration of nitrite and nitrogen flows 
to the plant. 

To ensure compliance with current permit requirements, the WQCF 2021 Capacity 
Assessment identified ten ( 10) wastewater treatment improvements, seven (7) of 
which are completed. The City is currently in the process of undertaking the 
remaining three (3) improvements as part of the Phase IV Expansion. The City's 

--
+ 024



13 .· 

di proposed budgeted programs $35.1 million dollars in improvements during to the
wastewater system in FY 2024/25, as shown in the City's Fund 650 budget below: 

40.0 

35.0 

30.0 

.,, 25.0 
z 

� 20.0 
,: 

15.0 

10.0 

5.0 

fY21 ACTUAl5 

FUND 650 - SEWER IMPROVEMENT 

5-YEAR TREND

fY22 ACTUALS fY23 CSTIMAT£O fY248UOG£T 

35.1 

fY15 PROPOSCO 

■ Total Revenues ■ Total Expenditures ■ Available Fund Balance

Hat Ranch will pay the City's sewer impact fee program, intended to ensure that new 
development pays for capital items needed to serve the growth of theCity. This 
program called the Public Facilities Implementation Plan - Sewer is paid at building 
permit issuance and is tracked within the City's Fund 630. Fund 630 is projected to 
have a balance of $5.4 million at the end of FY 2024/25. Some of the projected 
available fund balance will be utilized to pay obligations towards developments for 
previous infrastructure accepted by the City, and toward interfund loan obligations. 
City staff is evaluating the use of the project available fund balance. The balance 
demonstrates the City's management ability and that City growth has to date paid it's 
fair share of the identified capital items needed to serve new growth. 

025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



Filed Doc �: 39-09072022-282 
09/07/2022 08:24:33 AM 

Steve J. Bestolarides 
San Joaquin County Clerk 

FILED 

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY 

OF THE DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR 

HAT RANCH PROJECT- SCH# 2013112049 

Date: 

Lead Agency: 

Project Title: 

Project Location: 

September 8, 2022 

City of Manteca 
1011 W. Center Street 
Manteca, CA 95337 
Email: lsimvoulakis@ci.manteca.ca.us 

Hat Ranch Project 

Southeast of the City of Manteca City limits in an unincorporated area of San 
Joaquin County (Accessor's Parcel Numbers (APNsJ: 226-120-100 , 226-120-
11 0 and 226-140-04). 

Public Review: The 45-day review period begins on September 8, 2022 and closes on October 22, 
2022 at 5:00 p.m. 

Project Description: The proposed project site is comprised of three parcels (APNs: 226-120-100 , 
226-120-110 (the "Western Parcels"], and 226-140-04 [the "Eastern Parcel'1) totaling approximately
184.4 acres located southeast of the City of Manteca City limits in an unincorporated area of San
Joaquin County. The Western Parcels are planted with vineyards. The Eastern Parcel is planted
with vineyards and contains a large barn, an office structure, a tree-lined driveway, and a 20,000-
square foot (sf) residence in the middle of the proposed project. The proposed project would include
a master planned residential community of up to 738 dwelling units, two neighborhood parks, and
an elementary/middle school located on the project site. The proposed project would include the
development of 634 traditional single-family detached homes and a unique district of 104 "half-plex"
units. The existing 20,000-sf residence would be demolished and replaced with single-family lots
consistent with the proposed development. The proposed project would require an annexation into
the City of Manteca, Prezoning, a General Plan Map Amendment (GPA), approval of a Tentative
Map, a Development Agreement, and approval of the Design Review Guidelines.

Document Availability: The Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is available for review at the 
Community Development Department (1215 W. Center Street, Suite 201, Manteca, CA 95337) and 
online at: 

https://www.ci.manteca.ca.us/CommunityDeve1opment/Planninq%20Division/Pages/Planninq-
Division-Documents.aspx. 

Provision of Comments: Members of the public and other interested agencies and individuals are 
invited to provide comments on the Hat Ranch Draft EIR. Written comments on the Draft EIR can be 
provided to the City at the address above by October 21, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. 

Significant Environmental Impacts: The Draft EIR identifies significant environmental impacts 
related to the following environmental topics: Agricultural Resources, Greenhouse Gases, and 
Transportation. 

037



038



039



040



041



042



BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

R E S OLU T I O N

R-24-38

Approve and Authorize a Second Addendum to the Agreement (A-14-373) for Property Tax 
Allocation Upon Annexation Between the County of San Joaquin and the City of Manteca 

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2014, the City of Manteca and the County of San Joaquin 
entered into a Master Property Tax Sharing Agreement (A-14-373) with an expiration date of 
December I, 2021; 

WHEREAS, on December 4, 2018, the Board of Supervisors approved the first 
Addendum to the Master Property Tax Agreement between the County of San Joaquin and the 
City of Manteca (A-I 8-418), extending the Master Property Tax Agreement for an additional 
seven years, up to and including December 1, 2028. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Supervisors does hereby approve 
the Second Addendum to the Master Property Tax Agreement between the County of San 
Joaquin and the City of Manteca, revising the Annexation Property Tax Base split 
to I 0% City and 90% County with all Incremental Growth split 40% City and 60% County to 
distribute property tax revenues more equitably between the City and the County based on 
service responsibility for additional subdivision development areas. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ___ �F�e=bru�ary�2�7�, 2�0�2�4-�, by the following vote of the 
Board of Supervisors, to wit: 

A YES: Canepa, Patti, Ding, Rickman, Villapudua 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ATTEST: RACHEL DeBORD 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
County of San Joaquin 
State of California 

By Rachel DeBord 

Resolution Template 01/2023 

l\'1ig11ct A. Villapudua 

MIGUEL A. VILLAPUDUA 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
County of San Joaquin 
State of California 

043



COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN & CITY OF MANTECA 

COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN & CITY OF MANTECA 
SECOND ADDENDUM TO THE AGREEMENT FOR 

PROPERTY TAX ALLOCATION UPON ANNEXATION 
A-24-SI

This second ADDENDUM ("Addendum") entered into this 2.')11,day of February, 2024 by 
and between the City of Manteca ("CITY") and the County of San Joaquin ("COUNTY") serves 
as an addendum to the "Master Agreement" for Property Tax Allocation (A-14-373), entered into 
December 2, 2014 by and between CITY and COUNTY; 

PREAMBLE: 

CITY and COUNTY acknowledge that both CITY and COUNTY have increasing service 
responsibilities with restrained revenue resources. There is no consensus between CITY and 
COUNTY regarding the analysis of local government funding issues arising from annexations. 
CITY and COUNTY each have their own distinctive and differing perspectives on costs and 
revenues generated by annexed areas. However, there is a statutory requirement for a Property Tax 
Allocation Agreement for the Local Agency Formation Commission to annex land. 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Article 13A, Section I of the Constitution of the State of California limits ad 
valorem taxes on real property to one percent (I%) of full cash value; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 6 of Part 0.5 of Division I of the Revenue and Taxation Code 
(Sections 95 et. seq.) provides for the allocation of property tax revenues; and 

WHEREAS, CITY and COUNTY must have an agreement for the allocation of property 
tax revenues upon annexation; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the following terms and 
conditions, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ADDENDUM: 

1. DEFINITIONS. The words and phrases in this Addendum shall have meanings as set forth
below:

A. "Annexation Properly Tax Base" shall mean the Base Year sum of the ad valorem
tax allocated to Detaching Special Districts, as defined herein, and to COUNTY within the area 
being annexed. 

B. "Base Year" shall mean the assessed valuation applicable to the property and
Improvements within the area being annexed at the time the application for annexation is submitted 
to the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo). 

044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



• -, - - - APN - -

I
I

j1J 

226-120-17
APN

226-120-18

APN
226-120-19

APN 
226-120-20

APN 
226-120-21

APN 
-

,

1 

_2?6-120-?_2_ 

APN 
226-140-11

,-
(') 
0 
(J) 
C0 
z 

,-
IO 
<D 
N 

3:: 

C0 
-

(J) 
C') 
0 
(J) 
C0 
z 

r-
:,i, 

"'�9 

1� _1
-:i� 

c:::,ti:; -�. "" 

SCALE: 1 "= 1000' 

o· soo· 1000'

z 

CJ) i:5 ��-� {-d

ffiSu �U) trj 

Cl) I- � � -'l!!!!::.e;;::;;:;;:::::;-:;::;::; "- ctj., PILLSBURY ROAD 
� � +I - C:S· •~ <::::, 
0 W <:t � �-:..: -a:: z co : �) l:J D..� ,- :�!CJ) 

#6 S0
°

16'44"E 

1710 • 07 

�� 
"( <.o

�

:::::; 

� 
u 

. .

� 
� 
"'� 

I 

I 

4'o � .... 
'1r 

<9(i,. 
STATE ROUTE 120 � 

SEDAN AVE. 

VICINITY MAP

N.T.S. 

2000' 

• 

ill.(!iQ 

BOUNDARY OF DESCRIPTION 
EXISTING PARCEL 
CITY LIMIT LINE 

MAP OF HAT RANCH REORGANIZA T/ON TO 
THE CITY OF MANTECA SAN JOAQUIN 

COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
(LAFC-36-23) 

[l>
P.O.B. 
M 

APN 
04-19-2024 9:45am 

SECTION LINE 
ANGLE POINT 
POINT OF BEGINNING 
MAPS AND PLATS, SAN JOAQUIN 
COUNTY RECORDS 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER 

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA 

maclCAY. SOIDPS 
ENGINEERS PLANNERS 

51 ◄28 rRANKLIN DR, PLEASANTON, CA 9◄588 

DRAWN DATE SCALE 

APRIL 2024 1"•1000' 

SURVEYORS 

(925)225-0690 
JOB NO.

25224. 000. Pl 

Ion MocOonold P: \2522 4 \SRV\MAPPING\PLATS\ANNEXATION.DWG 

054



25224.000.PI 
4/8/2024 

Page !of I 

DESCRIPTION OF HAT RANCH REORGANIZATION TO THE CITY OF MANTECA, SAN 

JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA (LAFC-36-23) 

BEING A PORTION OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16 AND A PORTION OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 7 EAST, MOUNT 
DIABLO BASE AND MERlDlAN, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 16; 

THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER SECTION, 

COURSE #I. NORTH 89°31 '42" WEST, 2644.57 FEET, TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID 
NORTHEAST QUARTER SECTION BEING ON THE EXISTING CITY LIMIT LINE; 

THENCE ALONG THE EXISTING CITY LIMIT LINE THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES: 

I. COURSE #2. NORTH 0°04'57" WEST, 1323.41 FEET ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE;

2. COURSE #3. THENCE LEA YING SAID WESTERLY LINE AND ENTERING SAID
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, SOUTH 89°30'54" EAST, 2660.37 FEET, TO THE
SECTION LINE COMMON TO SECTIONS 15 AND 16;

3. COURSE #4. THENCE NORTHE.RLY ALONG SAID SECTION LINE, NORTH 0°15'53"
WEST, 386.86 FEET;

4. COURSE #5. THENCE LEA YING SAID SECTION LINE AND ENTERING SAID
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 15, SOUTH 89°30'50" EAST, 2631.47 FEET, TO
THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER SECTION;

5. COURSE #6. THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE, SOUTH 0°16'44" EAST, 1710.07
FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER SECTION;

COURSE #7. THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE, NORTH 89°39'18" WEST, 2651.90 FEET, 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONT AJNlNG 184 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

IAN ONALD 

END OF DESCRIPTION 

LIC SURVEYOR NO. 8817 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

IIACKAY & sam,s 
CML ENGINEElltNG• IAND PIANNING• IAND SUIM'r1NG 
51◄2 Franklin Dflve Sulle B. F1eosonlon CA 9◄566-3355 
1925) 225-0690 

P:\25224\SR V\Mapping\Dcsc\Hat Ranch Annexation.doc 

DATE 

055



056



057



058



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B6C400C-F4O7-4709-92CA-137FE1931ECB 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MANTECA, RICHLAND PLANNED 

COMMUNITIES, INC., AND LATHROP-MANTECA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

REGARDING ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY FROM THE DISTRICT TO THE CITY 

OF MANTECA. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 21st day of December 2023, by and between 
the City of Manteca, a municipal corporation ("CITY"), Richland Planned Communities, Inc., a 
California corporation ("APPLICANT") and the Lathrop-Manteca Fire Protection District, a 
California Special Fire District ("DISTRICT"). 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, APPLICANT desires to annex certain property known as Hat Ranch 
Annexation Parcel Nos. 226-120-100 and 226-120-110 (the "Property") into the CITY. A legal 
description and map identifying the location of the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and 
incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, upon annexation, a detachment of the Property from the DISTRICT that 
serves the Property occurs because the CITY will provide fire services once the Property is 
annexed;and 

WHEREAS, upon annexation, the DISTRICT will lose their share of the property tax 
previously allocated to them; and 

WHEREAS, APPLICANT and the DISTRICT desire to resolve the transition of lost 
revenue(s) to the DISTRICT and comply with the existing policy of the Local Agency Formation 
Commission. 

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between the CITY, APPLICANT and 
DISTRJCT as follows: 

I. Upon annexation of the Property to the CITY and the detachment of the Property from the
DISTRICT, APPLICANT shall pay to the DISTRICT, within 15 business days of said
annexation recordation, the amount of Eleven Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty Eight
Dollars and Thirty Seven Cents ($ I 1,938.37) as shown in Exhibit "B" and for an
unconditional release and waiver from any additional obligation(s).

2. The provisions of the Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and bind the heirs, successors
and assigns of the respective parties to this Agreement.

3. The parties intend that this Agreement and the covenants created herein shall constitute
covenants running with the land, as defined in California Civil Code Section 1462, so as to
bind and benefit the successors, heirs and assigns of the parties.

4. It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that this Agreement shall be
deemed and construed to be entered into and to be performed in the County of San Joaquin,
State of California, and it is further understood and agreed by and between the parties

26961031881-0018 

19851325.2 al2/18/23 
-1-

059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



21Page 

Figure 1 - Location Map 

HATRANCH 

PROJECT SITE 

I J 

Nl'R::le RAYI.Ul"PARXWAY 

(ACm,.Mf) 

Sl!OAN AVENUE 
Q 
C 

0 
,. 

.. 

u 

M.Sf)flOI.DWSN:UPAl'C 
fQ.fl!NI: AGl.:'A7"" 
Pll000Sll>"'50ENIIIT 

ll!ll>•MWJ 

SEOAN AVENUE 

.. 

VICINITY MAP 

HAT RANCH 

NTS .... 
1,.. -- ......... _ 

084



085



086



087



088



089



090



In addition to the City's agricultural mitigation fee program, the SJMSCP requires development to pay fees 

on a per-acre basis for impacts to agricultural lands that function as habitat for biological resources. While 

the Project site consists of three separate parcels that are planted with vineyards and contain a large barn, 

an office structure, a tree-lined driveway, and a 20,000 square foot residence (Hat House), 

implementation of the Project would result in the conversion of approximately 184.7 acres of existing 

agricultural land (and existing residence) into residential housing, a school, and park land. Pursuant to the 

SJMSCP, conversion of agricultural land would be viewed by SJCOG as a loss of habitat that otherwise 

provides support to wildlife communities in San Joaquin County. 

SJCOG will then use these funds to purchase the conservation easements on agricultural and habitat lands 

in the Project vicinity. The compensation results in the purchase of conservation easements that are 

placed over agricultural land. As such, the Project fees paid to SJCOG as administrator of the SJMSCP will 

result in the preservation of agricultural lands in perpetuity. 

The purchase of conservation easements and/or deed restrictions through the City agricultural mitigation 

fee program and the SJMSCP allows the landowners to retain ownership of the land and continue 

agricultural operations and preserves such lands in perpetuity. 

Soils 

There are several methods for classifying soil quality for agricultural uses. One method involves a soil 

capability rating provided by the National Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). This classification 

shows, in a general way, the suitability of soils for most kinds of field crops. Crops that require special 

management are excluded. The soils are grouped according to their limitations for field crops, the risk of 

damage if they are used for crops, and the way they respond to management. The criteria used in grouping 

the soils do not include major and generally expensive land forming that would change slope, depth or 

other characteristics of the soils, nor do they include possible but unlikely major reclamation projects. In 

the capability system, soils are generally grouped at three levels: capability class, subclass, and unit. 

Capability classes, the broadest groups, are designated by the numbers 1 through 8. The numbers indicate 

progressively greater limitations and narrower choices for practical use. Based on this classification 

system, the Project site contains the following soil classifications: 

ACRE"S IN 

AO! PERCENT OF CAPABILITY CLASS! FICA TION* 
UNIT SYMBOL NAME (AREA OF AO! 

INTEREST) 

Delhi fine sand, Oto 5 IIIS-4, irrigated, IVe-4, non-irrigated 
141 percent slopes 

30.9 17.1% 

Delhi loamy sand, Oto 2 llls-4, irrigated, IVe-4, non-irrigated 
142 percent slopes, M LRA 17 

121.6 67.1% 

Tinnin loamy coarse sand, llls-4, irrigated, IVe-4, non-irrigated 
255 0 to 2 percent slopes 

28.6 15.8% 

� DEPICTS IRRIGATED VS NON-IRRIGATED CAPABll/TY RATING; SOURCE: NRCS CUSTOM WEB SOIL SURVEY, 2021; SAN)OAQU/N COUNTY SOIL SURVEY, 1992. 

9IP a g e ■ J.0. ANDI RSON a 
- -
l A' II 11 <, I r l I,, I\<, 

091



• Class 1 soils have slight limitations that restrict their use.

• Class 2 soils have moderate limitations that restrict the choice of plants or that require moderate

conservation practices.

• Class 3 soils have severe limitations that restrict the choice of plants or that require special

conservation practices, or both.

• Class 4 soils have very severe limitations that restrict the choice of plants or that require very

careful management, or both.

Based on the table above, 181.1-acres of the 184.7-acre annexation area contain soils with severe or very 

severe limitations that restrict the choice of plants, require special conservation practices, require very 

careful management, or all of the above. The predominant soil found within the annexation area is 

classified as having severe limitations or more, allowing the Project site to be conducive to urban 

development rather than continued agricultural practices. 

Evaluation of Alternative Sites 

As part of the evaluation of the Project's open space conversion statement, alternative sites that may be 

best suited for residential development were evaluated. As noted in the Project's EIR, an Off-Site 

Alternative was considered with primary consideration given to alternatives that could reduce significant 

impacts, while still meeting most of the basic Project objectives. The City has found that there are no 

feasible alternative locations that exist within the City's Sphere of Influence with the appropriate size and 

characteristics that would meet the basic Project objectives and avoid or substantially lessen a significant 

effect. The City has determined that alternative locations outside the Sphere of Influence would not be 

feasible because an expansion of the Sphere of Influence would induce unplanned growth and cause 

impacts greater than development on the Project site. Finally, because the Project Applicant does not 

possess a comparable property, the Off-Site Alternative has been dismissed from further consideration. 

For these reasons, the City of Manteca determined that there are no feasible alternative locations. 

Justification for Approval 

The proposed conversion is consistent with the City's overall planning vision, as identified in the Adopted 

General Plan (April 2023), which assumes the site would be developed with residential and park uses. The 

General Plan and General Plan EIR anticipated development of the Project site as part of the evaluation 

of the overall buildout of the City. Additionally, the Adopted General Plan designates this land for Low 

Density Residential uses consistent with the Project and is anticipated in the overall buildout of the City 

as part of the General Plan EIR. The 2023 General Plan EIR also addressed the conversion and loss of 

agricultural land that would result from buildout of the 2023 General Plan, providing a discussion of the 

General Plan policies intended to reduce impacts. However, the 2023 General Plan EIR concluded that 

although these policies and regulations would reduce impacts related to the conversion of Prime 

Farmland, Unique Farmland, and Farmland of Statewide Importance, the permanent loss of farmland 

would result in a significant and unavoidable impact to agricultural resources. 

lOIP a g e  ■ 1.0. ANOtnso-. II 

- -
l .\ \ 0 I \ l i• I .\ '\ \ 1 't, 

092



Consistent with the requirement that LAFCO review the proposed annexation request pursuant to the 

criteria provided in Government Code Section 56337, the following justification and findings are made in 

support of approval of the annexation request. 

1) Lands within the annexation area are planned for urban uses in the Manteca General Plan. The

proposed conversion is consistent with the City's overall planning vision, as identified in the 2023

General Plan, which assumes the site would be developed with residential and park uses. The 2023

General Plan and General Plan EIR anticipated development of the Project site as part of the

evaluation for the overall buildout of the City. Additionally, the proposed General Plan Update

designates this land for Low Density Residential uses consistent with the Project and is anticipated

in the overall buildout of the City as part of the General Plan EIR.

2) The Project is located within the City of Manteca 10-year Planning Horizon as illustrated in Figure

5, below.

3) The Project proposes an orderly and logical boundary for annexation and is contiguous to the

City limits.

4) The Project creates a logical extension of the City boundaries and can be served by existing

infrastructure.

HI P a g e  ■ J.lJ.. ANO(RSQ:,,i ■ 
- -
l \ \ n I•\ l Pl.\\\ I' L 

093



Figure 5 - City of Manteca Sphere of Influence 

12 I Page 

C:,�c,1�,pu 
C:,l'He,elt 
Cl 10 Vu,, PUno ... "-it40 

c:o� ... �-,ol-'O'•� 

c::J�O'r•ce,r1 

O�t�IW\ic'Q 

r, 

J u. Al\01 RSO, ■ 
- -
I \, II t \ l r I .\\\I' 4.. 

094



095



096



CITY SERVICES PLAN 

Introduction 

Pursuant to Section 56653 of the California Government Code, the San Joaquin County Local Agency 

Formation Commission (LAFCo) requires that any application for a change of organization or 

reorganization be accompanied by a plan for providing services to the area affected by the requested 

change of boundary. In accordance with the above cited section, the plan for providing services shall 

include the following information: 

1. An enumeration and description of the services to be extended to the affected territory,

2. The level and range of those services,

3. An indication of when those services can feasibly be extended to the affected territory, if

new services are proposed,

4. An indication of any improvements or upgrading of structures, roads, sewer or water

facilities, or other conditions the local agency would impose or require within the affected

territory if the change of organization or reorganize is completed; and

5. Information as to how the services would be financed.

The proposal being submitted to LAFCo includes the annexation of approximately 184.7 gross acres of 

land into the City of Manteca. Several related land use entitlement applications have been submitted to 

the City of Manteca for the development of the Hat Ranch Subdivision, a 738-lot single family residential 

subdivision, which comprises 152.3 acres of the Annexation Area. The Plan for Services described below 

includes a description of the Project, and existing and proposed services to be extended to the project 

area. 

Project Description 

The Hat Ranch Project consists of an Annexation application for 184.7 acres of unincorporated land in San 

Joaquin County into the City of Manteca, the Pre-zoning of all 184.7 acres, a General Plan Amendment, a 

Planned Development Overlay, and a Tentative Subdivision Map for the Hat Ranch Subdivision Project. 

The subdivision will have 738 units, 16.2 acres of park/basin area, a 16.1-acre school site, and over 13 

acres of public right-of-way improvements. 

The annexation area is located near the southeast edge of the City of Manteca, immediately south, west, 

and east of the existing City limit lines. The site is bounded by the future southern extension of Atherton 

Drive and agricultural lands to the east, single family residential uses to the north and west, and the future 

Raymus Parkway and agricultural uses to the south. The Project will be constructing the future extension 

of Atherton Drive and an east/west portion of Raymus Parkway from Atherton to Main Street. The 

extension of South Pillsbury Road will bisect the annexation area, essentially creating a "Hat West" and a 

"Hat East." A future Ripon Unified School District site is located on the Hat East side. Both the East and 

West side will have a public park/basin area. The West Park will be an expansion of Pillsbury Park and the 

15 I P a g e  
■ J.U. ANOl:'.RSO."'l 

- -
I \ \ 0 I \ t r l -\\\I\<, 

097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



The Project would include the development of 738 dwelling units, which would directly cause population 

growth, including school-aged children that would attend the schools that serve the Project site and 

surrounding area. 

Based on the yield rates provided in the City of Manteca General Plan 2023 EIR, the Project could generate 

roughly 701 new students, broken down by grades as follows: 

• K-8: 503 students

• 9-12: 198 students

Further, the Project proposes 16.1 acres of Public/Quasi-Public (PQP) space which will be reserved for a 

Ripon Unified School District Elementary or Middle school on the Hat East side of the Project. The addition 

of this school site will be the school site for the majority of the Hat Ranch subdivision as well as homes in 

the surrounding subdivisions. The proposed school site that would be developed as part of the Proposed 

Project would have a 675-student capacity, which would reduce the Project's potential impact related to 

demand for school services. 

The RUSO collects impact fees from new developments under the provisions of SB 50. Payment of the 

applicable impact fees by the Project applicant, and ongoing revenues that would come from taxes, would 

fund capital and labor costs associated with school services. The adequacy of fees is reviewed on an annual 

basis to ensure that the fee is commensurate with the service. Payment of the applicable impact fees by 

the Project applicant, and ongoing revenues that would come from property taxes, sales taxes, and other 

revenues generated by the Project, would fund improvements associated with school services. According 

to Government Code Section 65996, the development fees authorized by SB 50 (1998) are deemed to be 

"full and complete school facilities mitigation" for any demands or impacts on school facilities caused by 

new development. The RUSO maintains a residential developer fee of $4.45 per square foot for all 

construction of new dwellings, in accordance with Proposition lA/SB 50. The Project Applicant will be 

required to pay the applicable impact fees; as a result, school services will be provided to the Annexation 

Area upon annexation. 

Wastewater Services 

Existing Wastewater Treatment Facilities 

The City's sewer service area is contiguous with City Limits, and is divided into north, south, and central 

sewer sheds. The municipal wastewater collection system includes 242 miles of sewer mains and 19 pump 

stations. The collection system includes gravity flow pipes ranging from 6-inch to 60-inch diameter, and 

force mains from 6-inch to 24-inch diameter. 

The existing collection system generally serves the developed portions of the City, with major trunk 

sewers located in the core of the City (the central sewer shed), approximately bounded by State Route 

120 to the south, Austin Road to the east, Lathrop Road to the north, and Airport way to the west. 

24 I P a g e  
II J.u. A�DrRSON B 

- -
I \ \ 0 ll \ I I' l .\\\I,{, 

106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



TIMELY AVAILABILITY OF WATER SUPPLIES 

Eventual build out of the Project would total approximately 738 residential units on approximately 184.7 

acres. The City of Manteca currently has two water sources, surface water and ground water. The City 

participates in the South County Surface Water Supply project for surface water and the City operates and 

maintains its own ground water system of wells. 

The unit water use factors for the land use designations applicable to the Project are shown in Table 4. 

The adjusted water use factors are the factors used throughout this assessment. Backbone right-of-way 

(ROW) land uses are assumed to not require water. 

Table 4: Water Use Factors by Land Use Type 

Water Use Factor, gpd/ac 

Land Use Designation 2005 Water Master Plan(a) Adjusted for SBx7-7(b) 

Low Density Residential (LDR) 2,800 2,240(b) 

Medium Density Residential (MDR) 4,050 3,240 
Park {P) 4,000 3,600 
Public/Quasi-Public 2,000 1,600 

(a) Based on unit water demand factors established In the City of Manteca 2005 Water Master Plan. These factors assume a per

capita water use of approximately 225 GPCD and do not account for conservation measures.

(b) Based on a 20 percent reduction of factors shown in the City of Manteca 2005 Water Master Plan. These factors assume that

the City is able to meet its 2020 per capita water use target of 179 GPCD. 

Source: Hat Ranch Water Supply Assessment (West Yost Associates, 2021). 

Potable water losses documented in the City's 2015 UWMP were calculated using a historic loss estimate 

of 12 percent of potable demands. It is anticipated that the implementation of advanced metering 

infrastructure (AMI) by 2018 will reduce losses to 8 percent by 2020, 7 percent by 2025, 6 percent by 

2030, and 5 percent thereafter. Because the Project is anticipated to have AMI, the WSA assumes that 

unaccounted-for-water {UAFW) will be 6 percent of the Project's potable demand. 

Based on the water use factors shown in Table 4 and a UAFW of 6 percent, the projected water demand 

for the Project is shown in Table 5. As indicated in Table 5, the total projected annual potable water 

demand for the Project is projected to be 491 AFY. 

32 I P a g e  
■ J.U. ANDtR�OIV 0 

- -
t\\!1 1.1\1 rlA.\1\1,(. 

114



Table 5: Projected Water Demand for Buildout of the Proposed Project 

Gross Area Dwelling Potable Water 

Land Use (acres) Units (DU) Water Use Factor Demand (AFY} 

East Side Low Density 
62.6 343 

Residential 
400(a) gpd/DU 155 

West Side Low Density 
63.5 291 457(b) gpd/DU 144 

Residential 

East Side Medium 

Density Residential 
8.3 64 421(c) gpd/DU 30 

West Side Medium 
5.8 40 390(d) gpd/DU 21 

Residential 

Street Landscape (e) 4.5 - 3,600 gpd/acre 18 

Parks 16.2 - 3,600 gpd/acre 65 

Public/Quasi-Public 16.4 - 1,600 gpd/acre 29 

Subtotal 
177.3 

738 
463 - -

UAFW(f) 28.0 

Total Demand 491 

Notes: gpd/ac = gallons per day per acres, gpd/DU = gallons per day per dwelling unit, AFY = acre-feet per year. 

(a) Based on LOR water use factor of 2,240 gpd/acre and an average density of 5.1 du/acre.

(b) Based on LDR water use factor of 2,240 gpd/acre and an average density of 4.2 du/acre.

(c) Based on MDR water use factor of 3,240 gpd/acre and an average density of 7.7 du/acre.

(d) Based on MDR water use factor of 3,240 gpd/acre and an average density of 8.3 du/acre.

(e) Based Street Landscape assumed to use the same water factor as Parks

(f) Based on 6 percent of project water demands.

Source: Hat Ranch Project Water Supply Assessment (West Yost Associates, 2021).

The Project does not intend to use recycled water. The City currently uses undisinfected secondary 

effluent to irrigate fodder crops in the land adjacent to the City's wastewater treatment plant. However, 

there is no infrastructure in place to deliver tertiary treated recycled water to retail customers. Although 

a Recycled Water Master Plan is being prepared with the intent that the City would use recycled water to 

offset potable water demands for outdoor uses in the future, recycled water infrastructure is not planned 

to be constructed in time to serve the buildout of the Project. 

Water demands for the Project will be served using the City's existing and future portfolio of water 

supplies. The inclusion of existing and planned future supplies is specifically allowed by the Water Code: 

Water Code section 10631(b): Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned 

sources of water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments described in subdivision 

(a). 

Water Code section 10910 states: 

10910(c)(4) If the city or county is required to comply with this part pursuant to subdivision (b), the 

water supply assessment for the project shall include a discussion with regard to whether the total 

projected water supplies, determined to be available by the city or county for the project during 

normal, single dry, and multiple dry water years during a 20-year projection, will meet the projected 

33 I P a g e  
II J.B. ANDfHSON 

- -
I \' 1, IJ � t f' I �'\I \ t. 

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



Project Title: 

Findings 
Not 

Undetermined No Yes 
Applicable 

2. For projects requiring a preconstruction survey (i.e.,

with Natural Lands or with the potential for SJMSCP
Covered Species):

Based on the preconstruction surveys conducted for the 
proposed project, direct take of an SJMSCP Covered 
Species will not occur or incidental take minimization 
measures can be undertaken in compliance with the 
SJMSCP that sufficient minimize or avoid impacts to the 
species consistent with the SJMSCP and Biological 
Opinion as detennined by the TAC 

F. Corridors/Species Movement (All Unmapped Not 
Undetermined No Yes 

Projects) Applicable 

1. San Joaquin kit fox. The project does not disrupt a
continuous corridor for the San Joaquin kit fox defined as
follows:

Continuous corridor of less than 15% slope with a length 
to width ratio of no more than 4: I and no narrower than 
0.35 mile connecting the kit fox range from Stanislaus Co. 
to Alameda Co. through the Southwest Zone with highest 
priority to land within 3 miles of the Delta Mendota Canal. 

Development in low slope occupied SJ kit fox habitat sw 
of 1-580 is configured to provide a continuous corridor to 
support resident kit fox/ 

In SW/Central Transition Zones, development is situated 
to allow stepping stone refugia west of the Delta Mendota 
Canal between that canal and the CA aqueduct. 

AND maintains an east-west dispersal habitat through the 
kit fox corridor such as along transmission lines and RR 
tracks west of the Delta Mendota Canal where practicable. 

(SJMSCP Section 5.5.3) 

2. The project does not interfere with the 1200' San

Joaquin River Wildlife Corridor: 600 feet from the
mean high water mark of the San Joaquin River on both
sides of the river from Stewart Tract to the Stanislaus/San
Joaquin County line except as follows:

A. For the area west of the river bordering Stewart
Tract, the corridor extends west from the river to
the top of the levee on the water side of the levee
and excludes Stewart Tract itself

B. For the area east of the river bordering land in
Lathrop and Manteca as indicated on the
SJMSCP Planned Land Use Map, setbacks to be
determined based on surveys for riparian brush
rabbit.

(SJMSCP Section 5.5.2.3) 

129



Project Title: 

Findings 
Not 

Undetermined No Yes 
Applicable 

3. Giant Garter Snake. The project will not impact
land between the Mid-Valley GGS recovery unit and the
San Joaquin Recovery Unit nor disrupt connectivity of this
habitat. (BO, pg. I 09)

4. The project does not include installation of a linear

barrier to species dispersal as defined in SJMSCP
Section 5.5.8 (e.g., median barriers along a highway)

G. Species Specific (All Unmapped Projects)
Not 

Undetermined No Yes 
Applicable 

l. Plants. The project will not result in the loss of
individuation plants or conversion of occupied habitat for
the large-flowered fiddleneck, succulent owl's clover,

Greene's tuctoria, Delta button celery, diamond-

petaled California poppy, showy madia, slough thistle,

legenere, Hospital Canyon larkspur or Sanford's

arrowhead or the provisions of Section 5.5.2.1 have been
implemented and limited take has been authorized
pursuant to that section and the findings contained in 
5.5.2.1 (8) have been made by the TAC.

The project will not result in conversion of occupied 
habitat for California hibiscus (BO, p. 15 I), Delta 

mudwort (BO, p. 152), Delta tule pea (BO p. 153), 
Mason's lilaeoposis (BO, p. 154), Suisun Marsh Aster 
(BO, p. 156). 

2. Burrowing Owl. The project will not result in
exceeding 19,533 acres of conversion of potential and
occupied habitat for the burrowing owl unless the
provisions of Section 5.5.2.4 have been met. (SJMSCP
Section 5.5.2.4)

The project does not encompass known locations of 
burrowing owls. (BO, p. 145) 

3. Giant Garter Snake. The project will not result in
mortality or harm of individuals or conversion of occupied
habitat for the giant garter snake unless the provisions of
Section 5.5.2.2 have been implemented and authorized
pursuant to that Section 5.5.2.2 and the findings provided
in that Section have been made by the TAC. Occupied
habitat is: area west of 1-5 on Terminous Tract, Shin Kee
Tract, White Slough Wildlife Area, Rio Blanco Tract.
W2, W3, W4 and D habitat surrounding a documented
finding of GGS by a qualified person, and the Caldoni
Marsh area.

4. Ring-tailed cat. The project will not result in
mortality or direct harm to individual ring -tailed cats.
(SJMSCP Section 5.5.2.6)

5. Riparian brush rabbit. The project will not result in
mortality or direct or indirect harm to individual rioarian

130



Project Title: 

Findings 
Not 

Undetermined No Yes 
Applicable 

brush rabbits or conversion of known occupied habitat 
unless the provisions of Section 5.5.2.7 have been met 
(SJMSCP 5.2.4.23 as modified by BO). 

Direct or indirect impacts on occupied habitat are assumed 
with: 

✓ Projects with potential to introduce domestic pets on
project site

✓ Projects including sewage or other outfall structures
discharging into occupied or potential habitat

✓ Projects directly or indirectly introducing human
intrusion into occupied or potential habitat (residential and
recreational development)

Any other project with direct or indirect effects exceeding 
the criteria in 5.2.4.23.C. (Biological opinion) 

6. Riparian woodrat. The project will not result in
mortality or direct or indirect harm to individual riparian
woodrats or conversion of known occupied habitat unless
the provisions of Section 5.5.2.7 have been met (SJMSCP
5.2.4.24, as modified by Biological Opinion).

Direct or indirect impacts on occupied habitat are assumed 
with: 

✓ Projects with potential to introduce domestic pets on
project site

✓ Projects including sewage or other outfall structures
discharging into occupied or potential habitat

✓ Projects directly or indirectly introducing human
intrusion into occupied or potential habitat (residential and
recreational development)

✓ Any other project with direct or indirect effects
exceeding the criteria in 5.2.4.24.C. (Biological Opinion)

7. Conservancy/Longhorn Fairy Shrimp. The project
will not result in mortality or harm to individual
conservancy and/or longhorn fairy shrimp (SJMSCP
Section 5 .5 .2. 7)

8. Yell ow-legged frog. The project does not encompass
occupied foothill yellow-legged frog habitat. (BO, p. 128)

9. Spadefoot toad. The project does not encompass
occupied spadefoot toad habitat. (BO, p. 130)

10. Tricolored Blackbird. The project does not increase
the distance between tricolored blackbird nesting colonies
and the closest suitable foraging habitat (BO, p. 135)

11. Swainson's hawk. The project does not impact any
of the five primary population centers for the Swainson's

131



Project Title: 

Findings 
Not 

Undetermined No Yes Applicable 

hawk (BO, pg. 120). 

12. California tiger salamander. The project does not
encompass any known breeding ponds for the California
tiger salamander (BO, pg. 125)

H. Unmapped Land Use Projects (Unmapped Not 
Undetermined No Yes 

Land Use Projects) Applicable 

I. The project meets at least one of the following criteria:

✓ is adjacent to existing city limits,
✓ is adjacent to the boundaries of defined communities

(as defined in the San Joaquin County General Plan),
✓ is adjacent to existing airport facilities,
✓ is within an area designated as Freeway Service

Commercial,
✓ is an expansion of an existing industrial area in the

unincorporated county
[SJMSCP Section 8.2.1 (I 0)1 

132



133



134



REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Reimbursement Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement") is made and entered into on 
, 2008 by and between SJCOG, INC., a California public benefit 

---------

corporation (hereinafter "SJ COG"), and _______ (hereinafter " ______ "). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, PROJECT APPLICANT is seeking coverage as another unmapped land use 
project under the San Joaquin County Multi-Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan 
("SJMSCP") for its project (Project Title), as described in the "Checklist for Unmapped SJMSCP 
Projects" attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Project"); and 

WHEREAS, PROJECT APPLICANT has completed, at its sole cost and expense, the 
Checklist for Unmapped SJMSCP Projects ("Checklist") and provided the complete Checklist to 
SJCOG for review; and 

WHEREAS, as part of determining if the Checklist is complete and determining if the 
Project is consistent with the SJMSCP and the Biological Opinion, SJCOG will incur certain 
costs and expenses; and 

WHEREAS, SJ COG desires to utilize the services of name of Consultant, i.e., Jones & 
Stokes (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant") as well as Neumiller & Beardlsee as Legal 
Counsel to perform the necessary "Peer Review" which shall be defined as an evaluation of 
PROJECT APPLICANT'S completed Checklist by a consultant hired by SJCOG, not currently 
employed by ,PROJECT APPLICANT, to review the completed Checklist and confirm the 
finding that the Project is consistent with the SJMSCP and the Biological Opinion; and 

WHEREAS, SJCOG will enter into a contract with the Consultant to perform the 
necessary Peer Review; and 

WHEREAS, SJCOG and PROJECT APPLICANT desire to memorialize PROJECT 
APPLICANT'S obligations to reimburse SJ COG for expenses incurred as a result of performing 
the Peer Review; 

NOW, THEREFORE. for good and valuable consideration, SJCOG and PROJECT 
APPLICANT agree as follows: 

135



136



Consultant to perform the Peer Review unless and until PROJECT APPLICANT makes the 
Initial Deposit. 

4. Description of Project. This Agreement covers the performance of the Peer
Review to determine if the Project is consistent with the SJMSCP and the Biological Opinion. 

5. Selection of Consultants. SJ COG has selected and PROJECT APPLICANT
hereby agrees that ___________________ will be retained by 
SJCOG to perform the Peer Review. 

6. lnfonnation. PROJECT APPLICANll agrees to supply SJCOG and the
Consultant with all infonnation and technical data necessary to review PROJECT 
APPLICANT'S proposed project so that they can perfonn the Peer Review. Any information 
required under this Section shall be supplied by PROJECT APPLICAN in a timely manner and 
shall only be released for public review after the review and approval of PROJECll 
APPLICANT. 

7. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate when PROJECT
APPLJCAN has reimbursed SJCOG all those costs specified in this Agreement. 

8. Agreement Not a Guarantee. PROJECT APPLICANT agrees that the
reimbursement of costs for the performance of the Peer Review does not constitute a promise, 
guarantee, or warranty that the Project will be consistent with the SJMSCP and the Biological 
Opinion. 

9. Indemnity and Hold Harmless. PROJECT APPLICANT agrees to defend,
indemnify and hold harmless SJCOG and its agents, officers, and employees from any and all 
claims, actions or proceedings against SJCOG which attack the adequacy, sufficiency, and/or 
legality of any decision made by SJ COG hereunder. 

IO. 
California. 

Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

11. Binding Effect. This Agreement is for the benefit of and shall be binding upon all
parties and their respective successors, heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and successors in 
interest. 

12. Non-Assignment. PROJECT APPLICANT shall not assign this Agreement
without the prior written approval of SJ COG which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

13. Notices. "Notice" means any notice. demand, request, or other communication or
document to be provided under this Agreement. All notices shall be in writing and shall be sent 
to the following address or at such other address as either party may later specify for that 
purpose. 

137



138



20. Signing Authority. The individuals signing this Agreement represent and agree
that they have full and actual authority to bind their respective parties to this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SJCOG and PROJECT APPLICANT have executed this 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

SJCOG, Inc. 

a California public benefit corporation 

By: STEVE DIAL 
Its: Treasurer 

PROJECT APPLICANT 

By: ___________ _ 

Title: 
-------------

139



140



25 

,_ 

Attachment 10 
Comments from San Joaquin County 

Environmental Health Dept. 

+
141



142



Agenda Item 5 

Balancing Communit) and Commerce 

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202 209-
468-3198

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

PROJECT: FY 2024/2025 Operating Budget - LAFC 15-24 

PROPOSAL: Approve a resolution adopting the Final FY 2024/2025 Operating Budget. 

APPLICANT: San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission 

LOCATION: N/A 

PURPOSE: Proposed Budget for FY 2024/2025 pursuant to Government Code Section 
56381, Annual Budget. 

PROCESS: This is an administrative matter pursuant to LAFCo policies, all 
Commissioners to vote on the proposed budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Commission approve a resolution approving the final budget 
as presented at the April 11, 2024, Commission public meeting. The workshop, after a 
discussion regarding stipends, direction was given to conduct a survey of other LAFCo's. 
The survey showed that the current stipend of $100 was at average. The survey also 
showed that most other LAFCo's have a cap on the stipends allowed per month with 2 
days being the most common. Accordingly, staff recommends keeping the stipend at $100 
with a two-day cap per month. The individual ciUes contributions were adjusted slightly 
because the 2023 population estimates from the State Finance Department became 
available on April 30, 2024. All other line items in the final budget remain the same as the 
preliminary budget. CKH Section 56381 mandates that a final budget shall annually be 
approved by June 15. 

BACKGROUND 

143



On April 11, 2024, the Commission held a public meeting to review and discuss the 
preliminary budget for FY 2024/2025. The preliminary budget was reviewed and 
recommended by the budget sub-committee of Chair Johnson and Commissioner Barton. 
A key component of the recommended budget for FY 2024/2025 is to keep the County 
and cities fair share the same as FY 2023/2024 budget. The County and collectively the 
eight cities fair share at $259,638.00. With the incorporation of the City of Mountain House 
on July 1, 2024, the mandated contributions from individual cities that existed last fiscal 
year decrease and the County contribution remains the same as the approved FY 2023-
2024 budget. 

FY 2024/2025 Population Based LAFCo Contribution 

Population % Population FY 24-25 Budget 

Escalon 7,249 1% $ 2,857 

Lathrop 37,033 6% $ 14,594 

Lodi 66,492 10% $ 26,203 

Manteca 90,917 14% $ 35,829 
-

Mountain House 27,602 4% $ 10,877 

Ripon 15,741 2% $ 6,203 

Stockton 317,204 48% $ 125,004 

Tracy 96,609 15% $ 38,072 

Cities Total 658,847 100% $ 259,638 

San Joaguin County 786,145 N/A $ 259.638 

LAFCo COMPARISON 

By in large, the population growth of a particular county has a direct correlation to the 
overall workload demand of that county's LAFCo over the recent past (5 years or less). In 
2023, San Joaquin County was the 4th highest level of population growth in the state with 
7,505 new residents. San Joaquin County accounted for 25% of the overall growth within 
the Central Valley. 

LAFC 15-24 06-13-2024 Page 2 of 13 

144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



Lead Agency other than LAFCo: 

Review Environmental Impact Report s 535.SS s 1,071.10 

Review Negative Declaration s 267.78 $ 535.SS

Review Exemption s 160.67 $ 321.33 

LAFCo as Lead Agency 

Initial Study (Including Negative Declaration) Actual Cost Actual Cost 

Preparation and processing of EIR Actual Cost Actual Cost 

CEQA Exemption $ 321.33 $ 642.66 

State Department of Fish and Wildlife Fee (LAFCo lead 

Agency) includes County Clerk Processing Fee) 

Notice of Exemption 

Negative Declaration 

Environmental Impact Report As Required by F&W As Required by F&W 

County Clerk Processing Fee $ 50.00 $ 50.00 

Boundary Map & Legal Description Checking (Make 

Check out to Son Joaquin County Deportment of Public $732.20 or 20% of LAFCo $732.20 or 20% of LAFCo 

Works ) Fee Fee 

Special Commission Meeting 

Staff Costs for Research, Technical Assistance, Mailing, 

Attendance at Meetings and unique/complex projects 

as determined by Commission 

Executive Officer per hour 

LAFCo Clerk/Analyst per hour 

Commission Clerk per hour 

County Clerk Processing Fee - Per Document 

Voter Registrar Fee 

Meeting CD per CD 

Document Copying per page 

Checking Sufficiency of Petition (per signature) 

Outside Consultants hired by LAFCo 

Meeting Transcript 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,142.21 $ 4,284.42 

203.51 s 407.02 

171.38 $ 342.75 

85.69 $ 171.38 

100.00 $ 100.00 

100.00 $ 100.00 

21.42 $ 42.84 

0.21 $ 0.43 

Fee set by Registrar of Fee set by Registrar of 

Voters Voters 

Actual Cost➔ 20% Actual Cost ➔ 20% 

Actual Cost • 20% Actual Cost➔ 20% 

Actual costs shall be determined by multiplying the documented actual hours by the hourly 

rate of salary plus benefits. 

022 

157



158



159



160



161



Services and Su lies 

Resolution LAFC 24-1538 

A 'rI' AC HM ENT "A" 

PROFESSIONAL SERV-PROGRAMS $ 108,886 
OFFICE EXPENSE-GENERAL $ 26,820 
OFFICE SUPPLIES-PU RC HAS I NG-ISF $ 1,207 
GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES $ 141 
OFFICE EXPENSE-POSTAGE $ 1,349 
COMMUNICATIONS $ 3,108 
MEMBERSHIPS $ 13,814 
TRANS AND TRAVEL-GENERAL COMMISSIONERS $ 8,760 
TRANS/TRAVEL-STAFF $ 2,667 
AUDITOR SERVICES $ 1,429 
PROFESSIONAL SERV- COUNTY $ 
PUBLICATIONS & LEGAL NOTICES $ 2,200 
RENTS-STRUCTURES & GROUNDS $ 19,412 
RENTS/LEASES-AUTO EQUIP-ISF $ 1,923 
DATA PROCESSING CHARGES $ 11,915 
INSURANCE-WORKER'S COMP $ 593 
INSURANCE-CASUAL TY - SLIP $ 15,402 

Revenues - Operating Costs $ 

$ 73,717 $ 75,802 

$ 17,831 $ 26,820 

$ 274 $ 549 
$ 79 $ 158 

$ 575 $ 1,149 

$ 1,219 $ 2,437 
$ 13,855 $ 12,409 

$ 11,158 $ 15,000 
$ 4,734 $ 7,000 

$ $ 1,501 
$ 2,964 $ 3,112 
$ 270 $ 540 
$ 12,941 � $ 22,738 

$ 1,041 $ 2,083 
$ 5,104 $ 10,207 

$ 453 $ 906 
$ 12,872 $ 14,159 

$301,692 $ 0 

162


	Agenda June Meeting 
	Agenda Item No. 1 Summary of Mintues 
	Agenda Item No. 2- Out-of Agency- Service Requests
	Agenda Item No. 3-Policy Manual Amendments 
	Agenda Item No. 4- Hat Ranch Reorganization to the City of Manteca 
	Agenda Item No. 5- Final FY 2024/2025 Operating Budget 



